
CITY OF WAUWATOSA
BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE

MINUTES • JULY 9, 2013

Regular Meeting Committee Room #2 8:00 PM

7725 West North Avenue, Wauwatosa, WI 53213

City of Wauwatosa Page 1 Updated 7/12/2013 4:37 PM 

Final

PRESENT: Alds. Wilson, Donegan, Birschel, Hanson, Organ, Tilleson, Ewerdt, Dubinski  - 8

ALSO PRESENT: J. Archambo, City Admin.; J. Ruggini, Finance Dir

Ald. Wilson as Chair called the meeting to order at 8:17pm.

BUDGET AND FINANCE COMMITTEE ITEMS

1. Memo from the Finance Director requesting approval of 2013 promissory note initial authorizing 
resolution

The committee reviewed a memo from the Finance Director requesting approval of the 2013 promissory note 

initial authorizing resolution and the 2013 refunding bond initial authorizing resolution.

Mr. Ruggini explained that these items will come before the Budget and Finance Committee twice.  He 

emphasized that it is necessary to approve these items to start the process, but it is essential to address any 

concerns regarding the bond issuance now.

Mr. Ruggini explained that one of the proposed initial authorizing resolutions is for 10-year promissory notes 

totaling $6.25 million for general projects. 

The remaining $9.5 million will be issued this fall as 20-year general obligation bonds to finance sewer 

enhancement projects. He explained that the sanitary and stormwater debt service amounts for 2013-2022 will 

be paid back over 20 years in order to even-out the rate impact and create intergenerational equity. He explained 

that the issuance for these 20 year bonds is delayed until this fall because Wisconsin law requires the amount be 

assigned to a specific project.

Mr. Ruggini explained that the 2013-2017 Capital Improvement Budget included $22.7 million in general 
obligation bond proceeds for approved projects. Due to several projects being postponed until 2014, the amount 
being borrowed at this time has been reduced to $15.75 million and will be borrowed through two debt 
issuances, the proposed initial authorizing resolution for 10-year promissory notes totaling $6.25 million and 
$9.5 million as 20-year general obligation bonds in the fall. He noted that the postponed projects will fit into the 
five year forecast.

Mr. Ruggini noted the approved projects included in the 2013 Capital Budget which require bond financing and 
recommended the initial authorizing resolution for $6.25 million in General Obligation Promissory Notes with a 
10-year amortization.

Mr. Ruggini explained that the City's debt payments will be 7.7% of total expenditures in 2013. This is less than 
the 10% maximum stated in the City’s Debt Management Policy. However, Mr. Ruggini emphasized that as the 
City issues more debt, this figure will rise. 

Based on the debt the City is issuing, Mr. Ruggini stated a 12% sanitary and 18% stormwater rate increase is 
expected next year.  This is less than the rate increases this year and as the City issues more debt the rate 
increases will lower each year.



Minutes Budget and Finance Committees July 9, 2013

City of Wauwatosa Page 2 Updated 7/12/2013 4:37 PM 

Mr. Ruggini explained this debt issuance was assessed by measuring its impact on debt capacity as governed by 
the Debt Management Policy. Mr. Ruggini compared the City of Wauwtosa’s debt profile (assuming issuance 
of this debt) to its policy goals and to the Aaa national average. 

Mr. Ruggini noted that the City is below its stated debt policy goals for all measures and compares favorably 
with the average for Aaa communities. The net total debt as a percent of full value, the net levy debt as a 
percent of full value, the debt service as a percent of expenditures, the net debt per capita and the debt per capita 
as a percent of median income are all below the Aaa national average and the City’s Debt Management Policy 
goals. He noted the exception is debt burden in which the City exceeds the Aaa average. This is largely because 
total debt burden includes the Metropolitan Milwaukee Sewerage District which maintains general obligation 
debt supported by property taxes which is fairly unique. Mr. Ruggini stated pressure will be placed on this 
measure as more debt is issued.

Ald. Donegan asked for the total debt per capita and asked if Mr. Ruggini referred to median Aaa cities when 
referencing median cities.

Mr. Ruggini confirmed he referred to Aaa median cities and Mr. Archambo noted that the Aaa rating is given to 
less than 2% of cities in Wisconsin.

Mr. Ruggini explained that several ratios are also used to measure financial and economic strength beyond the 
City’s debt profile. The City has stronger financial comparisons to its Aaa peers, but it also has lower assessed 
value and per capita income, and a higher concentration of its tax base. Mr. Ruggini emphasized that 
maintaining above average financial results is critical as the debt profile is expected to worsen over the next 
several years.

Mr. Ruggini explained that City officials plan to travel to Chicago to meet personally with representatives from 
Moody’s to explain the importance of the capital improvement plan, stress the financial strength of the City and 
describe the significant economic development initiatives that are ongoing.

Ald. Wilson asked if Moody’s will consider the City’s actions as proactive or negative.

Mr. Ruggini explained that Moody’s will look at the information intrinsically. As a rating agency, they 
understand that infrastructure improvements are necessary and they recognize that the current situation is part of 
a national problem.  He stated that he expects Moody’s to view the City’s profile favorably based on their long-
term plan and the national trend of debt profiles.

Mr. Ruggini explained that the City also plans to refund (refinance) its 2009 bonds which have an outstanding 
principal amount of $4.1 million. The 2009 bonds were issued as taxable Build America Bonds (BAB) and 
received an annual 35% interest payment subsidy from the Federal government. However, as part of the 2013 
federal sequester, this interest payment subsidy was reduced by 9% and these bonds became callable.  This 
bond has an emergency call provision and can be refinanced.

Mr. Ruggini recommended approval of the initial authorizing resolution for $4.1 million in General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds to save approximately 4% of the principal. If the rates are favorable, Mr. Ruggini stated he 
will issue the debt on August 6, 2013 and then call the debt in September.

Ald. Donegan asked what borrowing costs the City is anticipating on August 6, 2013 and he asked if the 
refinance depends on the rate environment.

Mr. Ruggini remarked that there is still volatility and he does not plan to refinance the 2009 bonds if the rates 
are not favorable.

Mr. Archambo explained that deferred maintenance is a difficult measure to capture and compare by rating 
agencies.  By managing debt, the City avoids unknown future infrastructure issues. Staff will travel to visit 



Minutes Budget and Finance Committees July 9, 2013

City of Wauwatosa Page 3 Updated 7/12/2013 4:37 PM 

Moody's in Chicago and explain the City’s long-term plan.

Ald. Ewerdt asked Mr. Ruggini to explain the General Fund balance as a percent of revenue in Figure 6 of the 
memo.

Mr. Ruggini explained that the table reflects the total revenues from the Financial Reports, or approximately 
$49 million. In the General Fund balance, there are four different categories. The General Fund balance total in 
this calculation includes the Amortization Fund which increases the City’s General Fund balance as a percent of 
revenue. 

Ald. Ewerdt asked if the City’s total debt was ever higher than $60.4 million.

Mr. Archambo and Mr. Ruggini explained that the City’s total debt, including Water and GE project, is closer to 
$85 million.

Ald. Ewerdt thanked Mr. Ruggini for his efforts and emphasized that he supports the motion.

Ald. Wilson echoed thanks to Mr. Ruggini for his level of detail and his efforts.

RESULT: INFORMATION ONLY

TO: Common Council

2. Resolution providing for the sale of $4,100,000 General Obligation Refunding Bonds, Series 
2013

Moved by Ald. Donegan, seconded by Ald. Wilson
to approve the initial authorizing resolution providing 
for the sale of $4,100,000 General Obligation 
Refunding Bonds, Series 2013 - Ayes: 8

RESULT: RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL [UNANIMOUS] Next: 7/16/2013 7:30 PM

TO: Common Council

MOVER: Peter Donegan, Alderman

SECONDER: Craig Wilson, Alderman

AYES: Donegan, Wilson, Dubinski, Hanson, Organ, Tilleson, Ewerdt, Birschel

3. Resolution providing for the sale of $6,250,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 
2013

Moved by Ald. Donegan, seconded by Ald. Wilson
to approve the initial authorizing resolution providing 
for the sale of $6,250,000 General Obligation 
Promissory Notes, Series 2013 - Ayes: 8



Minutes Budget and Finance Committees July 9, 2013

City of Wauwatosa Page 4 Updated 7/12/2013 4:37 PM 

RESULT: RECOMMENDED FOR APPROVAL [UNANIMOUS] Next: 7/16/2013 7:30 PM

TO: Common Council

MOVER: Peter Donegan, Alderman

SECONDER: Craig Wilson, Alderman

AYES: Donegan, Wilson, Dubinski, Hanson, Organ, Tilleson, Ewerdt, Birschel

4. Ordinance amending portions of Section 3.20.040 of the Wauwatosa Municipal Code to raise the 
purchase order threshold to five thousand dollars (for adoption)

Ald. Wilson noted that this Purchasing Ordinance amendment was discussed at Committee on June 25, 2013 

and introduced at Common Council on July 2, 2013.

Moved by Ald. Organ, seconded by Ald. Ewerdt

to recommend adoption of an ordinance amending
Section 3.20.040 of the Code raising the threshold for
purchase orders to $5,000 - Ayes: 8

RESULT: RECOMMENDED FOR ADOPTION [UNANIMOUS] Next: 7/16/2013 7:30 PM

TO: Common Council

MOVER: Jill Organ, Alderwoman

SECONDER: Brian Ewerdt, Alderman

AYES: Donegan, Wilson, Dubinski, Hanson, Organ, Tilleson, Ewerdt, Birschel

5. Vouchers

Ald. Organ asked if a discount price is offered for government employees to attend conferences.

Mr. Archambo explained that there is usually a discount rate if they are a member of the organization.

Ald. Organ stated that Milwaukee County contacts conference organizers directly to inquire about  government 
rates. She suggested that the City contact conference organizers to ensure the best rate is charged for employee 
training and conferences.

Moved by Ald. Hanson, seconded by Ald. Birschel that
each and every voucher be allowed and paid - Ayes: 7
Present: 1 (Donegan)

RESULT: APPROVED [UNANIMOUS]

MOVER: Tim Hanson, Alderman

SECONDER: Donald Birschel, Alderman

AYES: Donegan, Wilson, Dubinski, Hanson, Organ, Tilleson, Ewerdt, Birschel

  
Carla A. Ledesma, CMC, City Clerk


